N/
wo \{v Ule

Equity & Anti-Racism Advisory Committee

Monday, May 5, 2025
4:30pm

Council Chambers
359 Main Street

Agenda

Call to Order
1. Approval of Agenda
2. Approval of Minutes of March 3, 2025

3. Public Input / Question Period

PLEASE NOTE:

o Individual members of the public may make comments and ask
questions for up to 5 minutes.

o Questions or comments are to be directed to the Chair.

o Comments and questions that relate to personnel, current or
potential litigation issues, or planning issues for which a public
hearing has already occurred, but no decision has been made by
Council, will not be answered.

4. Chairperson’s Comments

5. New Business & Staff Reports for Discussion
a. Town of Wolfville Policies for Review
i. Policy #120-007 Municipal Lands & Facilities Naming
ii. Policy #610-004 Street Naming
iii. Policy #710-003 Grants to Organizations

6. Round Table

359 Main Street | Wolfville | NS | B4P 1A1 | t902-542-5767 | f 902-542-4789

Wolfville.ca



N/
wo \'ﬁv Ule

7. Next Meeting Date —July 7, 2025

8. Adjournment

359 Main Street | Wolfville | NS | B4P 1A1 | t902-542-5767 | f 902-542-4789

Wolfville.ca



N
w/o LﬁviLLe.

POLICY

Municipal Lands & Facilities Naming

Policy Number: Supersedes Policy Number:

120-007 Not Applicable

Effective Date: Approval By Council Motion Number:
2012-06-25 10-06-12

1.0 Purpose

To provide guidelines for Town Council for the naming of municipal lands and facilities or elements
thereof.

2.0 Scope

This Policy is applicable to all Town of Wolfville Council members.

3.0 References

3.1 Nova Scotia Municipal Government Act

4.0 Definitions

4.1 Municipal Lands and Facilities means all real property including unimproved lands,
buildings and structures owned by the Town of Wolfville including, but not limited to,
parkland, open space, recreational facilities, bridges, and operations and administrative
buildings.

4.2 Elements means substantial features or portions of Municipal lands or facilities that are
deemed by Council to warrant a separate and distinct name from the Municipal lands or
facilities they are a part of. This may include, but not be limited to, such things as: rooms
or structures within a building, recreational structures, trails, playgrounds, and gardens.

4.3  Council means the Council of the Town of Wolfville.

4.4  Contributions means services, goods, property or money.

5.0 Policy

5.1 The naming of Municipal Lands and Facilities or elements thereof is at the discretion of
Council.

5.2 This policy shall not apply to the naming of Town streets, which is covered in separate
policy.

Page 10f3



Policy 120-007

Municipal Lands & Facilities Naming ‘ /

POLICY

w/o L‘iv ULle

53

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

There have been, and will continue to be, a great many contributors to the Town of
Wolfville and a limited number of opportunities to name municipal lands, facilities and
elements.

The Town of Wolfville believes that existing names of municipal lands and facilities have a
historical significance and place within the community; hence, this policy shall address
naming criteria beginning at the effective date of this policy.

Selected names will come from the following candidate pool:

a. ageographical reference that is associated with the location of the lands or building;

b. aname related to the Town of Wolfville’s heritage and/or history;

c. anindividual or organization who or which has had a substantial impact on the
vibrancy and well-being of the Town of Wolfville through their contributions.

The following principles shall guide Council when considering naming of Municipal land
and facilities and elements thereof:

a. names shall be unique; name duplication and similar sounding names shall be
avoided;

b. names shall not be discriminatory, derogatory or political in nature;

c. names shall be mindful of emergency response considerations;

d. names that recognize an organization for a financial contribution will be considered
when the activities and values of the organization are aligned with the values of the
Town of Wolfville;

e. where the name of an individual or organization is selected, approval shall be
obtained from the individual (or his/her family when appropriate) or the organization
for such naming.

Parks will not be named after individuals, with the exception of the following:

a. the acquisition of new municipal property which has a commonly known and
established name;

b. contractual requirements for the acquisition of the new property.

Town Council shall consider ways, other than naming, to recognize contributions made to
the Town (e.g. plaques of recognition at a facility or written certificates).

Page 2 of 3



N
WO L‘ﬁvlu.e.

5.9 Nothing in this policy shall prevent the placement of memorial plaques on items donated
to the Town, such as trees and benches, in accordance with other Town policy.

5.10 A donation for the purpose of receiving civic naming acknowledgement is not a guarantee
of name perpetuity.

5.11 Council shall retain the right not to name certain facilities of broad community importance
such as (but not limited to) Town Hall.

CAO

Date

Page 3 0of3



Policy No. 610-004 V/
Street Naming
w/o L‘iviu.e.

POLICY

Street Naming

Policy Number: Supersedes Policy Number:

610-004 Not Applicable

Effective Date: Approval By Council (Motion Number):
2002-01-01 13-01-02

1.0 Purpose
To establish a process that the Town will use for the naming of streets.
2.0 Scope
This Policy is applicable for the Town Council of Wolfville when considering the naming of streets.
3.0 References
3.1 Nova Scotia Municipal Government Act (MGA)
4.0 Definitions

4.1 Council means the Town Council of the Town of Wolfville.
4.2 Director means the Director of Planning Services.

4.3 Society means the Wolfville Historical Society.

5.0 Policy

5.1 When the need arises for the naming of street the following process will be followed:

e The Director will communicate the request to the Society and invite them to provide
their recommendation of a suitable name based on the background information
details provided.

e The Society will provide their choice with a detail history and information in support
of their recommendation.

e In making its recommendation the Society will consider the following:
= Names of former Mayors of the Town
= Names of families and or individuals of importance to the Town
= Names of areas or landmarks of significance
=  Former street names.

Page 1 0f2



Policy No. 610-004 V /
Street Naming
w/o L‘ﬁvlu.e.

POLICY

e The Society’s recommendation will be forwarded to Council with an attached Request
for Decision for Council’s consideration and decision.

5.2  Minor Adjustments:

e Council on the recommendation of the Director may make minor changes to existing
street names as deemed appropriate.

March 10, 2016

W b Arudm

Date

Page 2 of 2



Policy No. 710-003 \ '/
Grants to Organizations
wo \'(v Ule

POLICY

Grants to Organizations
Policy Number: Supersedes Policy Number:
710-003 710-001
Effective Date: Approval By Council Motion Number:
2016-03-22 30-03-16
2021-12-21 35-12-21
2024-09-24 19-09-24

1.0 Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for reviewing and evaluating requests from
organizations for financial assistance pursuant to clause 65A of the Municipal Government Act.

2.0 Scope

This policy affects all recognized organizations under Section 65A in the Municipal Government
Act that wish to obtain funding from the Town for a service, program, special project, initiative,
or capital campaign for the benefit of residents, businesses, and visitors to the Town of
Wolfville.

3.0 References

3.1 Municipal Government Act
3.2 Signing Authority Policy, 120-011

4.0 Definitions

4.1 Council means the Town Council of the Town of Wolfville.

4.2 Signature Festival or Event means an event or festival held within the Town of
Wolfvillethat occurs annually and has a significant positive economic impact on
the community.

4.3 Town means the Town of Wolfville, a body corporate.

5.0 Policy

5.1 One-time-Requests (Operating) see Appendix C

359 Main Street | Wolfville, NS B4P 1Al | t 902.542.5767 | f 902.542.4789
wolfville.ca
Page 1 of 23


http://nslegislature.ca/legc/statutes/municipal%20government.pdf
http://nslegislature.ca/legc/statutes/municipal%20government.pdf

Policy No. 710-003

Grants to Organizations

POLICY

N/
w/o \‘(v Ule

51.1

One-time requests to support extraordinary operational events and

initiativesmay be considered by Council using the following criteria:

SO o o0 T W

The request is greater than $2,000.

Only one application per organization may be approved every four years.
The request is aligned with Council’s Strategic Plan.

All criteria outlined in Appendix C is met.

The financial capacity/local economy of the day is considered.

The funding of the request would be in addition to the grants to
organization budget allowance; and

Funding will be provided either in one lump sum amount and expensed
in the year it is approved or through multi-year payments. Funding
provided over multiple years will be subject to annual budget approval
by Council and may be subject to change.

5.2 Capital Funding Requests - see Appendix D

521

Funding requests to support capital campaigns and projects may be

consideredby Council using the following criteria:

a.
b.
c.

T ho

The request is greater than $10,000.

The request will not exceed $50,000.

Effective April 1, 2025, organizations can apply twice within an eight-year
period.

The eight-year period shall commence from the date of initial
disbursement.

The approved amount shall not cumulatively exceed $50,000.

The request is aligned with Council’s Strategic Plan.

All criteria outlined in Appendix D is met.

The financial capacity/local economy of the day is considered.

The funding of the request would be in addition to the grants to
organization budget allowance; and

Funding will be provided either in one lump sum amount and expensed
in the year it is approved or through multi-year payments. Funding
provided over multiple years will be subject to annual budget approval
by Council and may be subject to change.

5.3 Sponsorships and Advertising

53.1

The Town will consider providing limited financial assistance, including but
not limited to sponsorship and/or donation of prizes, to support
conferences and/or workshops that are hosted in our region, of which the
Town is an active member (i.e., NSFM, AMA, FCM).

359 Main Street | Wolfville, NS B4P | Al | £ 902.542.5767 | f 902.542.4789

wolfville.ca
Page 2 of 23



Policy No. 710-003 \ '/
Grants to Organizations
wo \'(v Ule

POLICY

5.3.2 The Town will not provide financial assistance, sponsorship or prizes to
conferences, conventions or workshops held in our region by an
organization of which the Town is not an active member. This includes
registration fees related toparticipation in golf or other recreation activities
associated with the conference.

5.3.3 Financial assistance for sponsorship requests under 5.3.2 may be provided
through the Grants to Organizations budget allowance if the purpose aligns
with Town goals, and funds are available. Decision(s) will be at the
discretion of the CAO and will not exceed $1,000.

5.3.4 Financial assistance may be provided through advertising if the purpose
aligns with the Town and/or Departments goals. Decision(s) will be
determined by appropriate staff and must fall within Advertising and/or
Marketing and Communication Budgets.

5.4 Strategic Partnership Program

5.4.1 The Town will provide financial assistance to support:
a. Facility operators who provide affordable multipurpose recreational
space tothe community.
b. Signature festivals or events that
i. Are along-standing festival or event (operating for a minimum
of fouryears).
ii. The Town has a partnership beyond a funding contributor with.
iii. s primarily located in the Town of Wolfville; and
iv. Have completed an Economic Impact Study to demonstrate the
significant contribution of non-residential participants who
attendthe event.
c. Community organizations that build community capacity and provide
benefit to the community.

As outlined in Schedule A.

5.4.2 To be eligible for Strategic Partnership Program funding the organization
must:
a. Enterinto a Funding Agreement (see Appendix A) with the Town.
b. Provide Financial Statements to the Town annually; and
c. Bealigned with Council’s Strategic Plan or other Town Strategies.
5.4.3 The Funding Agreements will be reviewed every four years.

359 Main Street | Wolfville, NS B4P 1Al | t 902.542.5767 | f 902.542.4789
wolfville.ca
Page 3 of 23



Policy No. 710-003 \ '/
Grants to Organizations
wo \'(v Ule

POLICY

5.4.4 If the organization no longer meets the above criteria or fails to meet any
provisions within the Partnership Agreement, the financial assistance will
cease in the current fiscal year.

5.4.5 The maximum amount awarded to any group for any Strategic Partnership
Program grant will not exceed $5,000.

5.4.6 The financial assistance level shall consider all contributions provided by
the Town(Property Tax Exemptions and in-kind support) when being
negotiated.

5.5 Community Partnership Program (CPP)

5.5.1 The Town will consider providing limited financial assistance to
organizations that:

a. Organize or operate programs for the benefit of the residents of the
Town of Wolfville, or
b. Coordinate and implement local events in the Town of Wolfville.

5.5.2 The level of funding for the Community Partnership Program will be set by
Councilas part of the Town’s budget process. Town Council may allocate
different funding levels for each of the two (2) CPP grant categories:

a. Programs
b. Local Events

5.5.3 Community Partnership Program Guidelines can be found in Appendix B.

5.5.4 This program does not provide financial assistance to social service,
health,education or similar services, departments, or agencies.

5.5.5 The maximum amount awarded to any group for any Community
PartnershipProgram grant will not exceed $2,000.

5.5.6 If an amount greater than $5,000 is remaining in the Community
Partnership Program after the allocation of funding of February 1 requests,
a second round of applications will be called for in July. Organizations who
applied in February may apply a second time if the funding is for a new
program or to cover a shortfall for the given year. However, new
organizations will be given priority.

5.5.7 All applications will be administered by Town staff applying the criteria
outlined inAppendix B.

5.5.8 Any decision of staff regarding funding requests may be appealed to
Council upon notice of appeal within seven (7) days of being notified of the
decision of staff. Council’s decision regarding the appeal shall be final.

5.5.9 Applications from community groups with new or innovative programming
or festival ideas may present to Council at the request of Council.

359 Main Street | Wolfville, NS B4P 1Al | t 902.542.5767 | f 902.542.4789
wolfville.ca
Page 4 of 23



Policy No. 710-003 \ '/
Grants to Organizations
wo L‘(v Ule

5.5.10 Applicants who have received a Community Partnership Program grant in a
previous year are not guaranteed approval for a Community Partnership
Program grant in subsequent years.

5.6 Policy Review

This policy will be reviewed every four years.

Schedule A — Strategic Partnership Program Operators/Events/Partners
Appendix A — Strategic Partnership Program — Funding Agreement
Appendix B — Community Partnership Program Guidelines

Appendix C — One-Time Special Funding Requests — Operating

Appendix D - Funding Requests - Capital

: 1 /) o September 24, 2024
.\'/ ,-’/‘:! {,,C/’\ftj\n\

Town Clerk Date

359 Main Street | Wolfville, NS B4P | Al | £ 902.542.5767 | f 902.542.4789
wolfville.ca
Page 5 of 23



Policy No. 710-003
Grants to Organizations

POLICY

N/
w/o \‘(v Ule

Schedule A

The following organizations will receive annual funding as outlined in the tables below subject to section

5.3.

Facility Operators

Providing affordable multipurpose recreational space to the community

Facility Operator Facility Strategic Partnership Program
Grant
Acadia Cinema Co-op Acadia Cinema $4,500
450 Main Street
Wolfville Curling Club Wolfville Curling Club $4,500
Wolfville & District Lions Club Wolfville & District Lions Hall $2,850

36 ElIm Avenue

Signature Festival and Events

Supporting the growth and success of Wolfville’s signature festival and events

Organization

Festival or Event

Strategic Partnership Program

Grant
Acadia Performing Arts Acadia Performing Arts Series $5,000
Deep Roots Music Cooperation Deep Roots Music Festival $5,000
Devour! The Food Film Festival Devour! The Food Film Festival $5,000
Uncommon Common Art Uncommon Common Art $5,000
Valley Harvest Marathon Valley Harvest Marathon $5,000
Valley Summer Theatre Valley Summer Theatre $5,000
Wolfville Magic Winery Bus Wolfville Magic Winery Bus $5,000

Page SA-1 of 2




Policy No. 710-003 \ '/
Grants to Organizations
wo L‘(v’ul.l.e.

POLICY

Community Organization
Building capacity of organizations that provide benefit to the community

Organization Strategic Partnership Program
Grant
Wolfville Farmers’ Market $5,000
Wolfville Historical Society $10,000
Kings Senior Safety Council $5,000

Page SA-2 of 2



Policy No. 710-003 \ '/
Grants to Organizations
wo \'(v Ule

POLICY

Appendix A: Strategic Partnership Program — SAMPLE Funding Agreement (will
be modified to reflect unique circumstances of each partnership arrangement)

N/
w/o L‘(v Lle

Funding Agreement
Between

Town of Wolfville
(hereinafter referred to “the Town”)

and
Funded Party
(hereinafter referred to as “the FP”)

Recitals

Whereas the FP

Whereas the Town wishes to support the FP.

Whereas the support of the Town is limited to those items set out herein.

Now therefore in consideration of the mutual promises herein contained and other good and valuable
consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged by the execution of this Agreement,
the parties agree as follows:

1.0 Responsibilities of the FP

1.1 The FP shall:
a. Provide to (“the
Deliverables”).

b. Perform the Deliverables starting no later than and terminating no earlier
than . In the event that portions of the Deliverables will
be performed on differing schedules those schedules will be set out in Schedule “A”,
hereto, and Schedule “A” will be signed by the parties to this Agreement. Schedule “A”,
where attached and executed in accordance with the terms of this clause, forms part of
this Agreement.

C. Repay to the Town on or before , or on
such other terms as the parties may agree in writing. Repayment to the Town will be in

Page A-3 of 5



Policy No. 710-003 \ /
Grants to Organizations

POLICY

w/o \‘(v Ule

the amount or form set out in Schedule “B” to this Agreement and signed by the parties.
Schedule “B”, where attached to this Agreement and signed by the parties in accordance
with the terms of this Agreement forms part of this Agreement.

Acknowledge the fact of funding by the Town when and as requested by the Town
provided that by so acknowledging the funding provided by the Town the FP shall incur
no actual pecuniary expense.

Obtain and maintain insurance in a minimum amount of . The
insurance will identify the Town as an Additional Insured under the policy of insurance.
The policy of insurance will include riders specific to the relationship between the FP and
the Town and as set in Schedule “C” hereto and signed by the parties to this Agreement.
Schedule “C”, where attached and signed by the parties in accordance with the terms of
this Agreement, forms part of this Agreement.

Prior to funding, or on such other schedule as the parties may agree in writing, the FP will
provide proof of insurance satisfactory to the Town in its sole, exclusive and unfettered
discretion.

Provide, within 36 hours of a request being made, full and complete answers to all
enquiries made of the FP by the Town. The FP shall not decline to answer any one or more
enquiries posed by the Town on the basis that the subject of the enquiries relates, in
whole or in part, to matters specifically excluded by this Agreement.

Indemnify and hold harmless the Town against all claims, losses, liabilities, demands, suits
and expenses from whatever source, nature and kind in any manner based upon,
incidental to or arising out of the performance or non-performance of any one or more
contract or agreements made by the FP and in relation to which the Town is, by this
Agreement, providing or agreeing to provide funding to the FP.

Inform the Town within 48 hours of receipt of a claim or notice of claim or possible claim,
including but not limited to the actual claim or notice thereof, irrespective of the
possibility, real or perceived, of any risk to the Town or claim being made against the
Town.

Keep and maintain accurate records as set out in Schedule “D”, hereto, and signed by
the parties to this Agreement. Schedule “D”, where attached and executed in accordance
with the terms of this clause, forms part of this Agreement.

Use the funds provided by the Town for the purposes set out in Schedule “E”, hereto, only.
Schedule “E” will be signed by the parties to this Agreement. Schedule “E”, where
attached and executed in accordance with the terms of this clause, forms part of this
Agreement.

Page A-4 of 5



Policy No. 710-003 \ /

Grants to Organizations

POLICY

w/o \‘(v Ule

1.2

2.0

21

2.2

Comply with all applicable laws of the Province of Nova Scotia and the Dominion of
Canada and all by-laws and policies of the Town of Wolfville and any other municipal
jurisdiction in which the FP provides Deliverables in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement.

m. Provide the Town with the names, email addresses, civic addresses and telephone
numbers (including but not limited to cell phone numbers) of

The FP will not:

a. Represent that the FP and the Town are partners or joint venturers.

b. Represent that the Town guarantees the performance of the Deliverables or provides
any control over or oversight of the activities of the FP.

C. Use the names “Town of Wolfville” or “Wolfville” other than to indicate the one or more

locations at which the Deliverables will be performed, without the written consent of the
Town.

Responsibilities of the Town

The Town will:
a. Provide in funding in total to the FP.
b. Provide funds in installments, the first installment in the amount of
will be provided on or before . Any one or more installments payable

by the Town to the FP pursuant to this Agreement will be payable on the schedule
appended to this Agreement as Schedule “F” and signed by the parties to this Agreement.
Schedule “F”, where attached and executed in accordance with the terms ofthis clause,
forms part of this Agreement.

Provide

The Town will not:

Direct the manner in which the FP fulfills its obligation to provide the Deliverables set
out in the Agreement.

Provide any control over or oversight of the FP in the fulfillment of its obligations to
perform the Deliverables set out in this Agreement.

Page A-5 of 5



Policy No. 710-003 \ /

Grants to Organizations

POLICY

w/o \‘(v Ule

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

C. Provide any guarantee of the performance of the Deliverables by the FP.
Relationship Between the FP and the Town

The Town and the FP are not partners or co-venturers and nothing in this Agreement or otherwise
constitutes either party as a partner or co-venturer of the other party to this Agreement.

General
Any notice under this Agreement shall be properly served if provided to:

To the Town: Town of Wolfville
Attention: Director of Parks & Recreation
359 Main Street,
Wolfville, NS

To the FP FP

This Agreement enures to the benefit of and is binding upon the parties, their administrators,
successors and assigns.

This Agreement and any documents expressly contemplated by this Agreement, constitute the
entire agreement between the parties. No representations, warranties, covenants or agreements,
whether oral or written, between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof are binding
upon the parties subsequent to the date of execution of this Agreement.

The parties agree that this Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the
Province of Nova Scotia and the Dominion of Canada. The parties agree that the courts of Nova
Scotia do not constitute a forum non conveniens.

The parties and the signatories to this Agreement confirm that each party has signed this
Agreement by its proper signing authority and that the signatories have the authority to bind each
party to the Agreement.

In the event of a dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement, including any question
regarding its existence, validity or termination, the parties shall first seek settlement of that
dispute by mediation. The mediation shall be conducted under the then current mediation
procedures of ADR Atlantic Institute or any other procedure upon which the parties may agree.
The parties further agree that their respective good faith participation in mediation is a condition
precedent to pursuing any other available legal or equitable remedy, including litigation,
arbitration or other dispute resolution procedures. Either party may commence the

Page A-6 of 5



Policy No. 710-003 \ '/
Grants to Organizations
wo L‘(v Ule

POLICY

mediation process by providing to the other party written notice, setting forth the subject of the
dispute, claim or controversy and the relief requested. Within ten (10) days after the receipt of
the foregoing notice, the other party shall deliver a written response to the initiating party's
notice. The initial mediation session shall be held within thirty (30) days after the initial notice.
The parties agree to share equally the costs and expenses of the mediation (which shall not include
the expenses incurred by each party for its own legal representation in connection with the

mediation).

Page A-7 of 5



Policy No. 710-003 \ '/
Grants to Organizations
wo \'(v Ule

POLICY
Appendix B: Community Partnership Program Guidelines

Supporting volunteer, community-based organizations is often fundamental to maintaining our quality
of life. The Community Partnership Program is designed to provide financial assistance to organizations
that:

a. Organize or operate programs for the benefit of the residents of the Town of Wolfville,
or
b. Coordinate and implement local events in the Town of Wolfville.

1. Requests for Funding must be submitted through the Town’s Community Partnership Program.

2. The deadline for applications will be February 1. Subject to Section 5.3.6 a second round of
funding may be called for in July with a deadline of August 1°.

3. Late applications will not be considered.
4. Applications can be submitted in the following ways:

Mailed to 359 Main Street, Wolfville, NS B4P 1A1

Hand delivered to Town Hall (359 Main Street)

Faxed to (902) 542 — 4789

Emailed to nzamora@wolfville.ca

Complete an Online form and submit through our website www.wolfville.ca

®oo oo

5. Allapplicants are required to use a Standard Application Form. Application forms are available at
Town Hall (359 Main Street), the Community Development & Public Works Building (200 Dykeland
Street), and online at www.wolfville.ca

6. The applicant must meet the requirements outlined in section 65A of the Municipal Government
Act to be eligible for funding. The Town reserves the right to request additional information prior
to distributing funding.

7. Only one application per organization, per fiscal year, unless a second round of funding is called
per section 5.4.6. The Town'’s fiscal year runs from April 15t to March 31*.

8. Successful applicants must submit a final report in the prescribed form. Final report forms will be
included with the awarding letters and available at the Town Hall, Community Development&
Public Works and online at Wolfville.ca. Groups will not be eligible to apply for financial assistance
in a subsequent year until the final report has been received.

9. Successful applicants will be notified by April 30™, for February 1st applications, and by October
31st, for August 1st applications

Page C-10f6


mailto:nzamora@wolfville.ca
http://www.wolfville.ca/
http://www.wolfville.ca/

Policy No. 710-003 \ '/
Grants to Organizations
wo \'(v Ule

POLICY

EVALUATION PRINCIPLES

The following principles will be used to evaluate each application:

1. Financial Sustainability & Management
Groups should show evidence of past success and demonstrate that they have taken steps to
ensure continued operation and/or growth. Groups must generate funds besides those provided
by the Community Partnership Program. These revenues may include registration/membership
fees, admission fees or fundraising. Groups should demonstrate responsibility and accountability
in their use of resources.

2. Community Benefit
Groups should demonstrate added value to the broad-based community and not substantially
duplicate a service of other organizations.

3. Active Living
Groups that offer active and healthy living components for members and participants will be given
priority when considered in the allocation of funds.

4. Heritage and Diversity
Groups that explore our past to enrich the lives the community.

Page C-2 of 6



Policy No. 710-003 N /
Grants to Organizations

POLICY WOL‘(v'LLLe.

EVALUATION CRITERIA

All Community Partnership Grants — minimum criteria

e Application is received on time.
e Alldocumentation has been received, including (purpose of the project, description of the project,
target demographic served, detailed budget, previous year’s financial statements, confirmation

of partner funding (if applicable), list of other revenue sources, final report from previous year
etc.)

e Project takes place within the Town of Wolfville or has a strong presence in the Town.
e The Town’s contribution should not exceed 50% of total revenue.

Evaluation Score Cards

e |f minimum criteria has been met complete a Program Grant Evaluation Score Card or a Local
Event Grant Evaluation Score Card.

Page C-30f6



Policy No. 710-003 \'
Grants to Organizations
w/o L‘(v ULle

POLICY
PROGRAM GRANT EVALUATION SCORE CARD

Applicant Name:

1. Program/Service Obligation

Core — service the Town would otherwise provide H3
Important — service the Town might otherwise provide M 2
Discretionary — service the Town does not normally provide L1
No Mandate — not enabled by legislation, should not do or not now NO
2. Council Strategic Plan

Vital — fundamental to Council’s Strategic Plan H3
Notable — solid fit within Council’s Strategic Plan M 2
Non-Critical — some relevance to Council’s Strategic Plan, not strategic L1
3. Public Need/Benefit

Community at Large — general need, broad-based H3
Multiple Interests — some need, a number of areas/communities M2
Vested Interest —special interest group(s), localized L1
4. Active Living

High —the core purpose is developing active and healthy lifestyles H3
Moderate — components of the program in improve active and healthy lifestyle M2
Low — limited opportunity to improve active and healthy lifestyles of participants L1
5. Human Development and Inclusion — Volunteer and Participant

High — equality of access and opportunity (demographic, geographic) H3
Moderate — range of demographic groups and/or development potential M2
Low — limited opportunity, access or development potential L1
6. Quality of Life

Livable Community —important to livable/sustainable community H3
Gmmunity Image — enhances image or public perception M 2
Community Pride —instills pride, sense of community L1
7. Alternate Providers

Limited — no other potential providers H3
Some — some potential alternate providers M2
Many — many potential or existing alternate providers L1
8. Financial Need

High —financial statements and/or budget demonstrate significant need H1
Low —financial statements and/or budget demonstrate limited need LO
9. Accountability (“Track Record)

Yes — annual report and/or financial statements of previous year received Y1
No (or New Org.) — no annual report and/or financial statements received NO
Total Score /23

e Ifscoreis between 20-23; application should receive full amount
e Ifscoreis between 16-20; application should receive full amount if budget permits
e Ifscoreis below 16; applicant shall not receive funding.

Amount Requested: Amount Awarded:

Page C-4 of 6



Policy No. 710-003 \'
Grants to Organizations
w/o L‘(v Lle

POLICY

LOCAL EVENT GRANT EVALUATION SCORE CARD

Applicant Name:

Council Strategic Plan

Vital — fundamental to Council’s Strategic Plan H3
Notable — solid fit within Council’s Strategic Plan M 2
Non-Critical — some relevance to Council’s Strategic Plan, not strategic L1
Public Benefit

Public Interest — all residents derive benefit H3
Mixed Interest —some residents derive benefit M2
Private Interest — specific residents benefit L1
Participation Levels

Under 100 1
100-200 2
200-500 3
500-1000 4
Over 1000 5
Human Development and Inclusion — Volunteer and Participant

High — equality of access and opportunity (demographic, geographic) H3
Moderate — range of demographic groups and/or development potential M2
Low — limited opportunity, access or development potential L1
Quality of Life

Livable Community — important to livable/sustainable community H3
Community Image — enhances image or public perception M 2
Community Pride — instills pride, sense of community L1
Financial Need

High —financial statements and/or budget demonstrate significant need H1
Low —financial statements and/or budget demonstrate limited need LO
Accountability (“Track Record)

Yes — annual report and/or financial statements of previous year received Y1
No (or New Org.) — no annual report and/or financial statements received NO
Total Score /19

e Ifscoreis between 15-19; application should receive full amount
e Ifscoreis between 12-15; application should receive full amount if budget permits
e Ifscoreis below 12; applicant shall not receive funding.

Amount Requested: Amount Awarded:

Page C-50f6



Policy No. 710-003 \ '/
Grants to Organizations
wo \'(v Ule

POLICY

Appendix C: One-Time Special Funding Requests - Operating

Supporting volunteer, community-based organizations is often fundamental to maintaining our quality
of life. The one-time special funding (operating) requests provision within the Grants to Organizations
Policy is intended to provide organizations with an avenue to periodically request funds to support
extraordinary operational events and initiatives. Capital campaigns will not be considered as eligible
expenses.

All requests are at the discretion of Council based on the following evaluation process and criteria. The
financial capacity of the Town to support the request will be a key consideration in the decision-making
process.

1. Applications may be submitted throughout the year. Council reserves the right to refer the request
to the following year’s budget process if they deem so appropriate.

2. Applications can be submitted in the following ways:

a. Mailed to 359 Main Street, Wolfville, NS B4P 1A1
b. Hand delivered to Town Hall (359 Main Street)

c. Faxedto (902) 542 —4789
d. Emailed to nzamora@wolfville.ca

3. The applicant organization must fall within section 65A of the Municipal Government Act to be eligible
for funding. The Town reserves the right to request additional information prior to distributing
funding.

4. Organizations that qualify for the Community Partnership Program or Strategic Partnership Program
are eligible to submit requests per this policy. Organizations that do not qualify for either program are
also eligible to submit requests and be considered.

5. Only one application per organization may be submitted per year. Only one application per
organization may be approved every four years.

6. Successful applicants must submit a final report in the prescribed form. Final report forms will be
included with the awarding letters and available at the Town Hall, Community Development & Public

Works and online at Wolfville.ca.

7. Successful applicants will be notified upon Council making a decision.

Page C-10f6


mailto:nzamora@wolfville.ca

Policy No. 710-003 \ '/
Grants to Organizations
wo \'(v Ule

POLICY

EVALUATION CRITERIA

One-time Special Funding Requests — Minimum Criteria

e Applicant organization falls within Section 65A of the Municipal Government Act.
e Request is greater than $2,000.
e Request is not for capital purposes.
e All documentation has been received, including:
o purpose of the request
description of the request
clear indication of how the request aligns with Council’s Strategic Plan
clear description of tangible benefit to the community
detailed budget, including all anticipated revenue sources
timeline of project
o confirmation of partner funding (if applicable),
e The Town’s contribution should not exceed 50% of the total project cost.

O O O O O

Evaluation Checklist

e If minimum criteria has been met, staff will complete a One-Time Special Funding Requests
Evaluation Checklist will be completed and provided to Council as part of the Request for Decision
process.

Page C-2 of 6



Policy No. 710-003 \'
Grants to Organizations
w/o L‘(v ULle

POLICY
ONE-TIME SPECIAL FUNDING REQUESTS EVALUATION
CHECKLIST (OPERATING)

Applicant Name:

1. Program/Service Obligation

Core — event/initiative/service the Town would otherwise provide H
Important — event/initiative/service the Town might otherwise provide M
Discretionary —event/initiative/service the Town does not normally provide L

No Mandate — not enabled by legislation, is not within the Town’s area of responsibility N
2. Council Strategic Plan

Vital — fundamental to Council’s Strategic Plan H
Notable — solid fit within Council’s Strategic Plan M
Non-Critical — some relevance to Council’s Strategic Plan, not strategic L

Provide Specific Linkages to Council’s Strategic Plan:

3. Public Need/Benefit

Community at Large — general need/benefit, broad-based H
Multiple Interests — some need/benefit, a number of areas/communities M
Vested Interest —special interest group(s), localized L

4. Human Development and Inclusion — Volunteer and Participant

High — equality of access and opportunity (demographic, geographic) H
Moderate — range of demographic groups and/or development potential M
Low — limited opportunity, access or development potential L
5. Quality of Life for the Community

Livable Community — important to livable/sustainable community H
Community Image — enhances image or public perception M
Community Pride —instills pride, sense of community L
6. Economic Impact to the Town H
High —there is a strong and demonstrated direct economic impact to the Town M
Moderate —there is a demonstrated indirect economic impact to the Town L

Low — there is minimal or no demonstrated economic impact to the Town

Page C-30f6



Policy No. 710-003 \ '/
Grants to Organizations
wo \'(v Ule

POLICY

Appendix D: Funding Requests - Capital
DRAFT - June 7th, 2016

Supporting volunteer, community-based organizations is often fundamental to maintaining our quality
of life. The funding (capital) requests provision within the Grants to Organizations Policy is intended to
provide organizations with an avenue to periodically request additional funds to support capital
campaigns and projects. Operating expenses and special events and initiatives will not be considered as
eligible expenses.

All requests are at the discretion of Council based on the following evaluation process and criteria. The
financial capacity of the Town to support the request will be a key consideration in the decision making
process.

1. The deadline for applications will be November 1. All applications will be reviewed as part of the
annual budget process for Council. Late submissions will not be considered until the following fiscal
year.

2. Applications can be submitted in the following ways:

a. Mailed to 359 Main Street, Wolfville, NS B4P 1A1
b. Hand delivered to Town Hall (359 Main Street)

c. Faxedto (902) 542 —4789

d. Emailed to nzamora@wolfville.ca

3. The Town reserves the right to request additional information prior to distributing funding.

4. From April 1, 2025, organizations can apply up to two times within an eight year period, as long as the
request amount is for $10,000 or more and does not cumulatively exceed $50,000.

5. The applicant, may, at the discretion of Council, be requested to enter into a Memorandum of
Understanding outlining all expectations of Council prior to any approved funds being released.

6. Successful applicants must submit a final report in the prescribed form. Final report forms will be
included with the awarding letters and available at the Town Hall, Community Development & Public
Works and online at Wolfville.ca.

7. Successful applicants will be notified upon approval of the annual budget. Decisions of Council are
final and are not appealable.

Page C-4 of 6


mailto:nzamora@wolfville.ca

Policy No. 710-003 \ '/
Grants to Organizations
wo \'(v Ule

POLICY

EVALUATION CRITERIA

Capital Funding Requests — Minimum Criteria

Application is received on time.
Request is greater than $10,000.
Request cannot exceed $50,000.
Request is not for operating purposes.
All documentation has been received, including:

o purpose of the request
description of the request
clear indication of how the request aligns with Council’s Strategic Plan
target demographic served
clear description of tangible benefit to the community
detailed budget, including all anticipated revenue sources
timeline of project
identification of risks associated with the project
previous year’s financial statements

o confirmation of partner funding (if applicable),

e The Town's contribution should not exceed 50% of the total project cost.

O O O O O O O O

Evaluation Checklist

e If minimum criteria has been met, staff will complete a Capital Funding Requests Evaluation
Checklist to be provided to Council as part of the Request for Decision process.

Page C-50f6



Policy No. 710-003 \

Grants to Organizations

POLICY

w/o \‘(v Ule

FUNDING REQUESTS EVALUATION CHECKLIST
(CAPITAL)

Applicant Name:

1. Program/Service Obligation

Core — service resulting from the capital campaign is something the Town would otherwise provide
Important — service resulting from the capital campaign is something the Town might otherwise provide
Discretionary — service resulting from the capital campaign is something the Town does not normally
provide

No Mandate — not enabled by legislation, is not within the Town’s area of responsibility

2 x

2.  Council Strategic Plan

Vital — fundamental to Council’s Strategic Plan

Notable — solid fit within Council’s Strategic Plan

Non-Critical — some relevance to Council’s Strategic Plan, not strategic

Provide Specific Linkages to Council’s Strategic Plan:

=

3. Public Need/Benefit

Community at Large — general need/benefit, broad-based

Multiple Interests — some need/benefit, a number of areas/communities
Vested Interest —special interest group(s), localized

—r< T

4. Human Development and Inclusion — Volunteer and Participant

High — equality of access and opportunity (demographic, geographic)
Moderate — range of demographic groups and/or development potential
Low — limited opportunity, access or development potential

—r< T

5. Quality of Life for the Community

Livable Community —important to livable/sustainable community
Community Image — enhances image or public perception
Community Pride — instills pride, sense of community

—Z T

6. Alternate Providers

Limited — no other potential providers

Some — some potential alternate providers

Many — many potential or existing alternate providers

=

7. Financial Need
High —financial statements and/or budget demonstrate significant need
Low — financial statements and/or budget demonstrate limited need

8. Economic Impact to the Town

High —there is a strong and demonstrated direct economic impact to the Town
Moderate —there is a demonstrated indirect economic impact to the Town
Low — there is minimal or no demonstrated economic impact to the Town

—Z T

9 Environmental Sustainability

High — Clearly aligns with GHG reduction, sound climate change principles and/or sustainable building
practices

Low — Does not align with GHG reduction, sound climate change principles or sustainability practices

T

MOU Required? Yes/No.
Provide details.

Page C-6 of 6




	1. Equity & Anti-Racism Advisory Committee Agenda - 2025-05-05
	2. 2025_03_03_Equity & Anti-Racism Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	120-007_Municipal Lands & Facilities Naming_2012-06-25
	610-004_Street Naming_2002-01-01
	710-003_Grants to Organizations Policy_2024_09_24
	2.0 Scope
	3.0 References
	4.0 Definitions
	5.0 Policy
	5.1 One-time Requests (Operating) see Appendix C
	5.2 Capital Funding Requests - see Appendix D
	5.3 Sponsorships and Advertising
	5.4 Strategic Partnership Program
	5.5 Community Partnership Program (CPP)
	5.6 Policy Review

	Schedule A
	Facility Operators
	Signature Festival and Events
	Community Organization

	Funding Agreement
	Appendix B: Community Partnership Program Guidelines
	EVALUATION PRINCIPLES
	EVALUATION CRITERIA
	All Community Partnership Grants – minimum criteria
	Evaluation Score Cards

	PROGRAM GRANT EVALUATION SCORE CARD
	Applicant Name:

	LOCAL EVENT GRANT EVALUATION SCORE CARD
	Applicant Name:
	Appendix C: One-Time Special Funding Requests - Operating
	EVALUATION CRITERIA
	One-time Special Funding Requests – Minimum Criteria
	Evaluation Checklist


	ONE-TIME SPECIAL FUNDING REQUESTS EVALUATION CHECKLIST (OPERATING)
	DRAFT – June 7th, 2016
	EVALUATION CRITERIA
	Capital Funding Requests – Minimum Criteria
	Evaluation Checklist


	FUNDING REQUESTS EVALUATION  CHECKLIST (CAPITAL)




